
Communities, Transport and 
Environment Policy Development 
and Scrutiny Panel

Date: Monday, 17th July, 2017
Time: 4.30 pm
Venue: Guildhall
Panel members please note there will be a pre meeting in the Chamber at 4pm.

Councillors: John Bull (Chair), Brian Simmons (Vice-Chair), Peter Turner, Alan Hale, 
Neil Butters, Lizzie Gladwyn, Rob Appleyard (for Ian Gilchrist), Richard Samuel and 
Michael Evans.

Cabinet Member for Community Services: Councillor Martin Veal
Cabinet Member for Transport and Highways: Councillor Mark Shelford

Chief Executive and other appropriate officers
Press and Public

Michaela Gay
Democratic Services
Lewis House, Manvers Street, Bath, BA1 1JG 
Telephone: 01225 394411
Web-site - http://www.bathnes.gov.uk 
E-mail: Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk



Communities, Transport and Environment Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel - 
Monday, 17th July, 2017

at 4.30 pm in the Guildhall

A G E N D A

1.  WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS 

2.  EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

The Chair will draw attention to the emergency evacuation procedure as set out 
under Note 6.

3.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS 

4.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

At this point in the meeting declarations of interest are received from Members in any 
of the agenda items under consideration at the meeting. Members are asked to 
indicate:

(a) The agenda item number in which they have an interest to declare.

(b) The nature of their interest.

(c) Whether their interest is a disclosable pecuniary interest or an other interest,   
(as defined in Part 2, A and B of the Code of Conduct and Rules for Registration of 
Interests)

Any Member who needs to clarify any matters relating to the declaration of interests is 
recommended to seek advice from the Council’s Monitoring Officer or a member of his 
staff before the meeting to expedite dealing with the item during the meeting.

5.  TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIRMAN 

6.  ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC OR COUNCILLORS - TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS, 
STATEMENTS, PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS RELATING TO THE BUSINESS OF 
THIS MEETING 

At the time of publication no notifications had been received.

7.  MINUTES (Pages 5 - 10)



8.  20MPH ZONES - REVIEW (Pages 11 - 24)

A report is attached on ‘20mph Zones Review’. There will be a presentation on this 
item at the meeting.

This item was deferred from the last meeting of the Panel in May 2017.

9.  GETTING FROM A TO B - STRATEGIC TRANSPORT REVIEW UPDATE 

There will be a presentation on this item at the meeting.

10.  CABINET MEMBER UPDATE 

The Cabinet Member will update the Panel on any relevant issues. Panel members 
may ask questions on the update provided.

11.  PANEL WORKPLAN (Pages 25 - 28)

This report presents the latest workplan for the Panel. Any suggestions for further 
items or amendments to the current programme will be logged and scheduled in 
consultation with the Panel’s Chair and supporting senior officers.

The Committee Administrator for this meeting is Michaela Gay who can be contacted on 
01225 394411.



This page is intentionally left blank



1
Communities, Transport and Environment Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 22nd May, 2017

BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET

MINUTES OF COMMUNITIES, TRANSPORT AND ENVIRONMENT POLICY 
DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY PANEL MEETING

Monday, 22nd May, 2017

Present:- Councillors John Bull, Brian Simmons, Peter Turner, Neil Butters, 
Lizzie Gladwyn, Bob Goodman, Paul May (in place of Alan Hale) and Samuel (in place of 
Ian Gilchrist)

1   WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS 

The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting.

2   EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

The Chairman drew attention to the emergency evacuation procedure.

3   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS 

Councillor Alan Hale gave his apologies and was substituted by Councillor Paul May.

Councillor Ian Gilchrist gave his apologies and was substituted by Councillor Richard 
Samuel.

Councillor Martin Veal, Cabinet Member for Community Services gave his apologies.

4   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were none.

5   TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIRMAN 

The Chairman, Councillor John Bull made two announcements:

1. That item 10 ‘20mph Zones – Review’ would be deferred until the 17th July 
2017 meeting of the Panel on the advice on the Monitoring officer due to the 
pre-election period restrictions (Purdah); and

2. At a previous meeting there was some discussion around Bath Transport 
Police and their presence in Bath, the Chair confirmed that their Bath office is 
not closing.

6   ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC OR COUNCILLORS - TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS, 
STATEMENTS, PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS RELATING TO THE BUSINESS OF 
THIS MEETING 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



2
Communities, Transport and Environment Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 22nd May, 2017

David Redgewell made a statement calling for improvements and maintenance at 
Bath bus station. He also mentioned that there were disability access issues at 
Keynsham and Ashton Way. Martin Shields, Divisional Director Environmental 
Services confirmed that emergency work will be undertaken to comply with the 
Disability Discrimination Act. Councillor Butters mentioned that the possibility of a 
working group was mentioned at a Council meeting to look at the bus station issue.

Councillor Lin Patterson made a statement regarding the 6-7 bus route, she stated 
that that there is still a lack of connection with London Road, Fairfield Park and 
Larkhall and felt the decision should have been a key decision and been consulted 
upon. She informed the Panel that the Council debate triggered by a petition on this 
issue has been deferred due to the purdah periods for the recent elections. She 
asked what input the Council’s transport department has had in planning, transport 
and parking under the devolved authority and what future plans are in place to 
ensure these local issues are addressed. Councillor Samuel asked if she felt the 
decision making was incorrect, Councillor Patterson replied that that is what she 
seems to be finding. The Cabinet Member for Transport, Councillor Clarke stated 
that he had every sympathy that the issue had not yet been discussed at Council 
due to the extensive purdah period. He added that the Bus Act and the Combined 
Authority are coming into being which will affect bus services. Andy Strong, Team 
Manager Public Transport added the responsibility will be the Combined Authority 
and this authority but the bus network will remain commercial.

7   MINUTES 

The Panel confirmed the minutes of the previous meetings as a true record and they 
were duly signed by the Chairman:

 23rd February 2017 
 13th March 2017

8   PARISH CHARTER 

Councillor Paul Myers Cabinet Member for Policy, Localism and Partnerships and 
Rosemary Nash, BANES ALCA Group, gave a presentation to the Panel which 
covered the following:

 Background
 51 Parish town and village councils
 Aim
 The review
 Shared and common issues
 Draft revised Charter
 Our Core Commitments
 Joint Principles for the devolution of services to parish and town councils
 Making it Happen
 Parish Charter Toolkit
 Next Steps

Panel members made the following points and asked the following questions:

Page 6



3
Communities, Transport and Environment Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 22nd May, 2017

Councillor May congratulated the Council and ALCA for the work on this document 
which is a positive step forward for both. He asked how the Charter would work if 
some Parish Council’s do not sign up to it. Councillor Myers explained that the 
Charter is a facility and basis for partnership which people can sign up to if they 
wish. Rosemary Nash added that there is bound to be some things that some 
parishes may not wish to sign up to but there is likely to be general sign up.

Councillor May asked if this system could be used instead of the many forums. 
Councillor Myers explained that there is a difference in the work done by Parish 
Councils and Forums.

Councillor Butters stated that Parish clusters could be revisited as some forums are 
not working as well as the clusters.

Councillor Samuel stated that he would welcome the principles in the Charter applied 
in his ward (Walcot) as he would like to know about things in the pipeline in his ward 
and be more informed. Councillor Myers referred to the Bath City Forum and added 
that the spirit of the Charter could be taken on. Councillor Bull suggested that a 
Charter for ward Councillors may be a separate piece of work.

Andy Thomas, Strategic Manager Communities, Strategy and Performance 
explained that the working group pulled together many existing commitments and 
working area service standards. He also stated that there are some differences 
between Parish Councils and Ward Councillors but the partnership approach of the 
Parish Charter has resonated. Regarding the comment about clustering of Parishes, 
he explained that these could be supported to achieve economies of scale and joint 
working whilst maintaining localness. He concluded that he would investigate 
whether some service standards in the Parish Charter can be used more widely.

Councillor Goodman (Bath City Forum Chair) explained that he is trying to expand 
the Forum. He explained that it is intended to make the forum Bath centric

Councillor Myers explained that because of the two systems (parish and non parish 
areas) it is hard to know what it is like to be in the other situation – he stated that 
Bath Councillors may have more access to officers but no access to resources as 
they do not raise a precept.

Councillor Butters stated that he has had some problems with a highways scheme 
where the Parish Council were not informed. The Divisional Director explained that 
he has talked to highways officers about what does and doesn’t work, budgets are 
under pressure and it is important that money is spent wisely.

It was agreed that the Panel supports the document.

9   TERMS OF REFERENCE - SCRUTINY INQUIRY DAY ON COMMUNITY SAFETY 

Donna Vercoe, Senior Scrutiny Officer introduced the report on the Terms of 
Reference for the Community Safety Scrutiny Inquiry Day. Councillor Bull explained 
that it was a good time to have a thorough enquiry into Community Safety 

Page 7



4
Communities, Transport and Environment Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 22nd May, 2017

particularly due to the changes in funding arrangements. He noted that the session 
would be invite only.

The Panel approved the Terms of Reference. 

10   20MPH ZONES - REVIEW 

Following advice from the Council’s Monitoring Officer, this item was deferred to the 
next meeting of the Panel on 17th July 2017.

11   CABINET MEMBER UPDATE 

The Cabinet Member for Transport, Councillor Clarke updated the Panel on the 
following issues which would be progressed after the purdah period:

 Parking Review
 Transport delivery plan/getting around Bath strategy
 Comprehensive plan to reduce pollution (High Court decision)
 Combined authority – the new Mayor has signed up to the Spatial Plan and 

Transport Plan and the first tranche of money has arrived.
 Officers decision on the East of Bath Park and Ride. 

Councillor Butters asked about the working group regarding the bus station which 
was suggested at Council. Councillor Clarke stated that nothing has been planned 
yet (the meeting was on 18th May).

12   PANEL WORKPLAN 

Councillor Bull explained that, as agendas for this Panel were getting too long, some 
updates will be send to Panel members via email. The following items were 
discussed:

 Metro West – report to be sent to Panel members after the purdah period
 Bus Bill – has been circulated

 Councillor Butters asked that an item on BTP be included on the workplan.

 Trams

 Councillor Samuel explained that the deadline for consultation on the Clean 
Air Paper is 31st July so it would be good to have an item on this at the July 
meeting. Councillor Bull stated that the DEFRA paper should be circulated 
and the item put on the agenda if the Panel can add value.

 Taxi’s – July or September 2017 (this issues crosses two portfolios and would 
need to involve Licensing)

Page 8



5
Communities, Transport and Environment Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Monday, 22nd May, 2017

The meeting ended at Time Not Specified

Chair(person)

Date Confirmed and Signed

Prepared by Democratic Services

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Printed on recycled paper

Bath & North East Somerset Council

MEETING:
Communities, Transport & Environment Policy Development &
Scrutiny Panel

MEETING 
DATE: 17th July 2017

TITLE: Review of 20mph limits 

WARD: All

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM

List of attachments to this report:
 Setting Local Speed Limits report

1 THE ISSUE

1.1 In 2016 the Panel asked if a review could be undertaken into how the 20mph speed 
limits across the district are performing. The attached report contains details of traffic 
speeds and injury accident data across these speed limits and conclusions as to their 
overall impact based on the information currently available.

2 RECOMMENDATION

The Panel is asked to:

2.1 Comment on the findings and conclusion of the report to help inform the 
Council’s future approach to the use of speed limits. 

3 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE)

3.1 Changes to speed limits are considered for funding under the Capital Transport 
Improvement Programme.

4 STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS AND BASIS FOR PROPOSAL

4.1 Sections 81 to 84 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 provide the Council with 
powers to impose or revoke speed limits.

5 THE REPORT

5.1 See attached report “Setting Local Speed Limits. A review of recent installations 
of 20mph area schemes (signage only).”

Page 11

Agenda Item 8



Printed on recycled paper

6 RATIONALE

6.1 Under Section 39 of the Road Traffic Act 1988 the Council has a duty to promote 
road safety, undertake accident studies and take appropriate measures to 
prevent accidents. Speed limits are considered to be part of a range of measures 
for improving safety. It is important that speed limits are used appropriately to 
ensure consistency across the district and the rest of the country in order to 
maintain driver compliance.

7 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

7.1 None.

8 CONSULTATION

8.1 None. This review was limited to an assessment of the data held by the Council and 
consideration of national guidance related to the setting of speed limits. 

9 RISK MANAGEMENT

9.1 A risk assessment related to the issue and recommendations has been undertaken, in 
compliance with the Council's decision making risk management guidance.

Contact person Paul Garrod (Traffic Management and Network Manager)

paul_garrod@bathnes.gov.uk

Background 
papers

None

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an 
alternative format

Page 12

mailto:paul_garrod@bathnes.gov.uk


1

“Setting Local Speed Limits” 

A review of recent installations 
of 20mph area schemes 

(signage only).
  

Page 13



2

“Setting Local Speed Limits” 

A review of recent 20mph area scheme installations.

Contents.

• Background to this review 

• The Issues 

• DfT guidance for setting local speed limits.

• Types of roads and speed limits that should apply to them

• Change in average traffic speed 

• Change in accident rate

• Change in casualty rate 

• Change in casualty severity

• Conclusions

Page 14



3

Background

In 2013, the Department for Transport issued a guidance document covering the 
issue of “setting local speed limits”, DfT Circular 01/2013, which built on previous 
experience and guidance notes. In this review report, extracts from this DfT guidance 
document will be shown in italics.

In the introduction to the circular, it states:

“Speed limits should be evidence-led and self-explaining and seek to reinforce 
people's assessment of what is a safe speed to travel. They should encourage self-
compliance…..This guidance is to be used for setting all local speed limits on single 
and dual carriageway roads in both urban and rural areas.

As well as being the legal limit, speed limits are a key source of information to road 
users, particularly as an indicator of the nature and risks posed by that road both to 
themselves and to all other road users”. 

Prior to 2015 a large number of 20mph schemes were initiated and from our legal 
Order records the following numbers of roads were treated, with the corresponding 
capital costs shown:

Year Number of 20mph 
roads 

implemented

Capital cost of 
installation 

(£)
2011 29 67,000
2012 103

2013 397
2014 415
2015 470

 
554,000

 
Plus additional 

225,000 in 2015
2016 85 25,000

 
total

 
1,499

 
£ 871,000

Many of these roads will have been part of area based residential schemes covering 
a number of roads in one project.

Page 15



4

The Issues

With so many schemes having been implemented in recent years, we are now 
receiving complaints that in some places drivers are not abiding by the 20mph speed 
restriction and in fact vehicle speeds exceed this by a large margin. There is local 
demand in some roads for speed reduction measures to be added to the schemes in 
order to physically reduce speed or, alternatively, requests are being made for Police 
enforcement. Hence it is clear that in such locations the spirit of the DfT guidance is 
not being met in that the schemes do not “encourage self-compliance”.

Traffic calming measures such as humps, speed cushions and build outs are known 
to be successful at reducing speeds but they are several times more expensive to 
install than speed limits, have ongoing maintenance costs and are unpopular with 
some residents and drivers. 

Humps are generally the most effective speed reducing measure, although the 
Government’s proposed plan for tacking air quality, which states local authorities are 
responsible for identifying proposals to tackle pollution in their area, suggests 
considering the removal of road humps to improve traffic flow and air quality.

The situation in some signed 20mph roads goes against the DfT guidance which 
states that “general compliance needs to be achievable without an excessive 
reliance on enforcement”.

It is for these reasons that the review is being carried out.  The guidance also states 
that “the principle should be to ensure that the appropriate traffic travels on the 
appropriate roads, and at an appropriate speed” and thus it follows that 
implementing a 20mph restriction is not always the appropriate measure to take. 
Thus the character and usage of a particular road needs to form part of the 
assessment.

DfT guidance for setting local speed limits.

In section 3 of the guidance, the DfT advises on the underlying principles behind any 
decision to impose a local speed limits and advises that the following factors should 
be taken into account:

 history of collisions, including frequency, severity, types and causes; 
 road geometry and engineering (width, sightlines, bends, junctions, 

accesses and safety barriers etc.); 
 road function (strategic, through traffic, local access etc.);
 composition of road users (including existing and potential levels of 

vulnerable road users); 
 existing traffic speeds; and 
 road environment, including level of road-side development and possible 

impacts on residents (e.g. severance, noise, or air quality).

Page 16



5

In paragraph 24, the guidance advises that “.. the visible characteristics of a road 
affect the speed that a driver chooses: to be effective, the reasons for a limit need to 
be apparent”.  In paragraph 26 it goes on to say that “Where there is poor 
compliance with an existing speed limit on a road or stretch of road the reasons for 
the non-compliance should be examined before a solution is sought. If the speed 
limit is set too low for no clear reason and the risk of collisions is low, then it may be 
appropriate to increase the limit”. 

Paragraph 27 sets out an underlying principle as follows:

“The aim of speed management policies should be to achieve a safe distribution of 
speeds consistent with the speed limit that reflects the function of the road and the 
road environment. This should imply a mean speed appropriate to the prevailing 
road environment and all vehicles moving at speeds below or at the posted speed 
limit, while having regard to the traffic conditions.”

Paragraph 29 goes on to say:

“A principal aim in determining appropriate speed limits should, therefore, be to 
provide a consistent message between speed limit and what the road looks like, and 
for changes in speed limit to be reflective of changes in the road layout and 
characteristics.”   

The DfT talks in terms of “mean” speed, ie “average” speed, as its measure and not 
of 85th percentile speed which is the other reading used to describe traffic speed. 
The clear message here is that the speed limit should be appropriate for the road 
type and road environment and there should be a clear understanding by drivers of 
why the limit is there, in other words the perceived hazard should be readily apparent 
and separate from the usual range of distractions a driver will experience on his/her 
journey.

In applying a local speed limit, the guidance in paragraph 37 advises that the length 
of speed limit should not be less than 600 metres to avoid too many changes along 
the route. In exceptional circumstances this may be reduced to 400 metres for lower 
speed limits or even 300 metres on roads with a purely local access function, or 
where a variable 20mph limit is introduced, for example, outside a school. 

Where speed limits are imposed, it is important that the motorist knows exactly what 
speed limit applies. In 20mph zones, for example, the terminal signs will be 
complemented by a range of physical features through the zone. For speed limits, 
however, which do not have such physical features it is important that sufficient 
repeater signs are provided that the driver knows “unhesitatingly” what speed limit is 
in force.

Types of roads and speed limits that should apply to them

Urban roads tend to have street lighting and thus are subject to the national speed 
limit of 30mph. This applies to both dual carriageways and single carriageway roads, 
but given the nature of dual carriageways it is likely that they will have a higher 

Page 17



6

speed limit in force, usually 40 or 50mph. Urban roads tend to be subdivided into 
types depending on the function they perform within the urban environment, ranging 
from main inter-district distributor roads down to local housing access roads and 
culs-de-sac.

Rural roads do not normally have street lighting and thus are subject to the national 
speed limits of 60mph for single carriageway roads and 70mph for dual 
carriageways. They might have lower speed limits in force and this will be displayed 
by road signage. Both urban and rural roads can form part of the arterial road 
network across the county and many will have A or B classifications, although many 
urban roads on this network will not (usually being C class) – nonetheless their 
importance as part of this arterial network will be clear.

For the purpose of this review, the table below summarises the road types present 
across B&NES and suggests their normal speed limit together with possible 
alternative speed limits, and this will form the basic framework for this review. 

Types of roads in B&NES and Speed Limits appropriate to type.

Page 18



7

Change in average traffic speed 

Following installation of around 1,500 street based schemes over the last 5 years or 
so, a sample study has been carried out in some 179 streets. Speed measurements 
have been taken before and after the implementation of the 20mph speed limit and 
the change can be see graphically as below.

 

These before and after readings show that:

 the number of streets falling below 22mph (20mph plus 10% speedometer 
error) has increased by 24% (from 85 to105).

 the number of streets falling into the 22-26mph band has increased by 7% 
(from 60 to 64).

 the number of streets falling into the 26-30mph band has reduced by 67% 
(from 30 to 10).

 No treated streets have average speeds above 30mph.
 The imposition of these 20mph limits has caused a small overall reduction in 

vehicle speeds of 1.3 mph.

The national situation regarding speed change where signage only schemes have 
been introduced also indicates that 1-2 mph reduction has been seen, with examples 
such as:

Manchester: average speed reduction of 0.7 mph.

Islington: average speed reduction of 1.0 mph,

N
um

be
r o

f S
tre

et
s

Speed band (mph)

179 streets 
sampled

Overall shift of 1.3 mph

Page 19



8

Bristol: average speed reducing by 0.9 mph,

Brighton: 1mph average speed decrease observed.

Hence, the picture in B&NES seems to be reflecting the national findings.

Change in accident rate

Accidents are defined as “random, multi-factored events” and therefore changing the 
road environment across all sample streets in the same way, by reducing the speed 
limit for example, will not necessarily result in consistent changes to the accident 
situation across all streets, due to this randomness. Also to be noted is that the 
imposition of the 20mph schemes in B&NES was not a targetted measure to address 
accident statistics in those areas. However, some interesting information has arisen, 
as follows. 

The accident rate per 12 months after installation can be seen in the chart below with 
the change from the equivalent “before” situation being seen in the row underneath – 
blue cell colouring indicates an improving situation with yellow colouring indicating a 
worsening situation.

Control 
area

Total Accidents per 12 
months after 6.0 10.1 7.5 1.4 7.2 0.0 2.4 1.6 0.8 3.0 3.2 12.0 0.8 9.7

Change from "before" -1.7 -1.9 -6.5 -2.2 -2.8 -1.3 1.4 0.6 -0.2 0.3 2.8 2.0 -0.2 -1.3

Total casualties per 12 
months after

Change from "before"

KSI Rate                          
per 12 months after

Change from "before"

Pa
ul

to
n 

Ba
th

w
ic

k 

Pe
as

ed
ow

n 
St

 J
oh

n

Tw
er

to
n

N
ew

br
id

ge
 /

 W
es

to
n

O
ld

fie
ld

 /
 

W
es

tm
or

el
an

d

W
al

co
t 

/ 
La

ns
do

w
n 

A
bb

ey
 /

 K
in

gs
m

ea
d

Bath zones Rural

Ba
th

ea
st

on
 /

 
Ba

th
am

pt
on

 /
 

Ba
th

fo
rd

 
O

dd
 D

ow
n 

/ 
Co

m
be

 
D

ow
n 

Ly
nc

om
be

 /
 

W
id

co
m

be

M
id

so
m

er
 N

or
to

n

Sa
lt

fo
rd

 

Ke
yn

sh
am

 

Generally, the 12 month accident rate per area is relatively small and, 
correspondingly, the change in accident rate resulting from the schemes is also 
relatively small, whether coloured blue or yellow.  The Bath areas seem to have 

No 20mph area  
restrictions

Page 20



9

fared better with more areas improving that not, but the rural areas show the reverse 
trend. Overall, the blue cells outnumber the yellow cells 8:5, suggesting a general 
improvement in accident rate due to these schemes. Interestingly, the control area of 
Midsomer Norton which does not have a 20 mph area scheme also shows an 
improvement in accident rate of similar scale to the Bath schemes. 

Change in casualty rate 

Due to the randomness of accidents, it would not be expected that reducing speed 
alone would have a uniform effect on casualty numbers or rates across the scheme 
areas. The actual results recorded per 12 months can be seen in the chart below, 
again showing the “after” rate per 12 months in the upper row with the change from 
“before” in the coloured row below it. Again, blue colouring indicates an improving 
situation with yellow indicating a worsening one. 

Control 
area

Total Accidents per 12 
months after 6.0 10.1 7.5 1.4 7.2 0.0 2.4 1.6 0.8 3.0 3.2 12.0 0.8 9.7

Change from "before" -1.7 -1.9 -6.5 -2.2 -2.8 -1.3 1.4 0.6 -0.2 0.3 2.8 2.0 -0.2 -1.3

Total casualties per 12 
months after 6.8 16.3 9.0 1.4 8.2 0.0 3.2 1.6 0.8 4.0 3.8 13.9 1.6 13.7

Change from "before" -1.6 1.3 -7.7 -3.2 -3.2 -2.0 2.2 0.6 -0.2 0.7 3.5 0.9 0.6 -1.7

KSI Rate                          
per 12 months after

Change from "before"

Pa
ul

to
n 

Ba
th

w
ic

k 

Pe
as

ed
ow

n 
St

 J
oh

n

Tw
er

to
n

N
ew

br
id

ge
 /

 W
es

to
n

O
ld

fie
ld

 /
 

W
es

tm
or

el
an

d

W
al

co
t 

/ 
La

ns
do

w
n 

A
bb

ey
 /

 K
in

gs
m

ea
d

Bath zones Rural

Ba
th

ea
st

on
 /

 
Ba

th
am

pt
on

 /
 

Ba
th

fo
rd

 
O

dd
 D

ow
n 

/ 
Co

m
be

 
D

ow
n 

Ly
nc

om
be

 /
 

W
id

co
m

be

M
id

so
m

er
 N

or
to

n

Sa
lt

fo
rd

 

Ke
yn

sh
am

 

Two areas have changes from blue to yellow when compared with the accident 
changes in the rows above, one being in Newbridge/ Weston where one particular 
accident resulted in 5 casualties arising. This shows the effect that one particular 
accident can have when the total casualty numbers per area are relatively small. 
Noticeable now is that the number of yellow cells now just outweighs the blue cells, 
7:6. 

No 20mph area  
restrictions

Page 21



10

Change in casualty severity

With regard to the severity of casualties arising from these accidents, it could be 
expected that reducing the speed of vehicles involved in accidents should result in 
less severe casualty ratings as the energy involved in the collisions will be less. The 
findings can be seen in the chart below.  “KSI” refers to the casualty classifications 
“killed or seriously injured”. 

Control 
area

Total Accidents per 12 
months after 6.0 10.1 7.5 1.4 7.2 0.0 2.4 1.6 0.8 3.0 3.2 12.0 0.8 9.7

Change from "before" -1.7 -1.9 -6.5 -2.2 -2.8 -1.3 1.4 0.6 -0.2 0.3 2.8 2.0 -0.2 -1.3

Total casualties per 12 
months after 6.8 16.3 9.0 1.4 8.2 0.0 3.2 1.6 0.8 4.0 3.8 13.9 1.6 13.7

Change from "before" -1.6 1.3 -7.7 -3.2 -3.2 -2.0 2.2 0.6 -0.2 0.7 3.5 0.9 0.6 -1.7

KSI Rate                          
per 12 months after 0.5 3.5 1.5 0.0 0.5 0.0 1.6 0.8 0.0 0.0 1.3 1.9 1.6 1.3

Change from "before" -0.1 2.5 0.2 0.0 -0.2 0.0 1.3 0.8 0.0 -0.3 1.3 1.2 0.9 1.0

P
au

lt
o

n
 

B
at

h
w

ic
k 

P
ea

se
d

o
w

n
 S

t 
Jo

h
n

Tw
er

to
n

N
ew

b
ri

d
ge

 /
 W

es
to

n

O
ld

fi
el

d
 /

 W
es

tm
o

re
la

n
d

W
al

co
t 

/ 
La

n
sd

o
w

n
 

A
b

b
ey

 /
 K

in
gs

m
ea

d

Bath zones Rural
B

at
h

ea
st

o
n

 /
 B

at
h

am
p

to
n

 
/ 

B
at

h
fo

rd
 

O
d

d
 D

o
w

n
 /

 C
o

m
b

e 
D

o
w

n
 

Ly
n

co
m

b
e 

/ 
W

id
co

m
b

e

M
id

so
m

er
 N

o
rt

o
n

Sa
lt

fo
rd

 

K
ey

n
sh

am
 

In this analysis, the picture has changed substantially. Three areas have remained 
constant with zero KSI rates, but now the yellow changes outweigh the blue by 7:3. 
This suggests that, overall, the schemes have seen a worsening of the casualty 
severities, although the control area also shows the same trend. 

Nationally, this adverse trend is also prevalent in other authority areas. In one 
notable case in Portsmouth, one of the earliest area based projects, it was reported 
that “the number of people  killed or seriously injured actually went up, not down, 
after the  limit was lowered”.  There is no simple explanation for this adverse trend 
but it could be that local people perceive the area to be safer due to the presence of 
the 20mph restrictions and thus are less diligent when walking and crossing roads, 
cycling or otherwise travelling.

No 20mph area  
restrictions

Page 22



11

On a national level, the results of these schemes have not been brought together to 
form an overall view on the effectiveness of signage only schemes, but the 
Department for Transport is engaged in such a study and is expected to report its 
findings and recommendations during 2017.

Conclusions.

The study has found that, 

a) Broadly speaking, speed reduction in line with national trends has been 
achieved, but in real terms the overall reduction in average speed is very small 
(1.3 mph) and thus is not persuasive in terms of the money spent on these 
schemes.

b) Some accident reduction has been observed in Bath, but accident increase, 
albeit slight, has been seen in outlying towns. Again, this mixed outcome seems 
to be reflected across the country.

c) Casualty severity has worsened marginally in Bath and more so in outlying 
towns.  Again, this is reflective of the national situation for reasons which are not 
yet clear.  A number of the schemes have not yet been in place for  3 years and 
thus the casualty picture might alter over the remaining months.

d) Overall, the speed limit programme in B&NES seems to have provided little in 
the way of persuasive argument for continuing the programme into the future.

e) Indeed, the rise in casualty numbers and severity as per the national trend (albeit 
with relatively small numbers in B&NES) would suggest against further 
expansion of area based schemes.

f) This analysis could be updated when all areas have 36 months of after data 
available and in the light of the anticipated DfT study on this subject (expected in 
2017).

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



 
COMMUNITIES, TRANSPORT AND ENVIRONMENT PDS 

FORWARD PANEL

This Forward Plan lists all the items coming to the Panel over the next few months.

Inevitably, some of the published information may change; Government guidance recognises that the plan is a best 

assessment, at the time of publication, of anticipated decision making.  The online Forward Plan is updated regularly and 

can be seen on the Council’s website at:

http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1

The Forward Plan demonstrates the Council’s commitment to openness and participation in decision making.  It assists the 

Panel in planning their input to policy formulation and development, and in reviewing the work of the Cabinet.

Should you wish to make representations, please contact the report author or Micheala Gay, Democratic Services (01225 

394411).  A formal agenda will be issued 5 clear working days before the meeting.  

Agenda papers can be inspected on the Council’s website and at the Guildhall (Bath), Hollies (Midsomer Norton), Civic 

Centre (Keynsham) and at Bath Central, Keynsham and Midsomer Norton public libraries.

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 11

http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1


1

Ref
Date

Decision 
Maker/s Title Report Author

Contact Strategic Director Lead

17TH JULY 2017
17 Jul 2017 CTE PDS

20mph Zones Review Kelvin Packer
Tel: 01225 394339

Strategic Director - 
Place

17 Jul 2017 CTE PDS
Getting from A to B - Strategic Transport Review Update Martin Shields Strategic Director - 

Place

18TH SEPTEMBER 2017
18 Sep 2017 CTE PDS

Parking Review Chris Major
Tel: 01225 39 4231

Strategic Director - 
Place

18 Sep 2017 CTE PDS
Domestic Abuse Update Samantha Jones

Tel: 01225 396364

Strategic Director - 
Resources

CTE PDS
Library Consultation Update Ian Savigar

Tel: 01225 477327

Strategic Director - 
Resources

13TH NOVEMBER 2017
ITEMS TO BE SCHEDULED

CTE PDS
Bus Services Bill Andy Strong

Tel: 01225 394201

Strategic Director - 
Place

P
age 26



2

Ref
Date

Decision 
Maker/s Title Report Author

Contact
Strategic Director 

Lead
The Forward Plan is administered by DEMOCRATIC SERVICES:  Micheala Gay 01225 394411  Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 MINUTES
	8 20mph Zones - Review
	20mph Zones Review Report

	11 Panel Workplan

